

The By-Laws, as recited here, are modifications of the original recorded document to reflect legal modifications made by a vote of 75% of the membership. The by-laws are, not re-recorded, but amendment verification is retained in the principle office of the association Modifications 1. Any reference to "Board of Governors" has been modified to the "Board of Directors" as designated in the recording of the Articles of Incorporation.

2. The time of the annual meeting is the last Sunday in September at 1:00 PM

3. The term of office is to be two years with two terms expiring on the even years and three terms expiring on the odd years.

## INDEX of By-Laws

<a href="#">Article I</a>	Office
<a href="#">Article II</a>	<p><b>Meeting of Lot Owners</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Section 1. Place of Meeting</li> <li>Section 2. Annual Meeting</li> <li>Section 3. Notice of Meeting</li> <li>Section 4. Special Meeting</li> <li>Section 5. Quorum</li> <li>Section 6. Adjournment</li> <li>Section 7. Voting</li> <li>Section 8. Cumulative Voting</li> <li>Section 9. Voting by Voice and Ballot</li> <li>Section 10. Proxies</li> <li>Section 11. Consent of Absentees</li> <li>Section 12. Conduct of Meeting</li> </ul>
<a href="#">Article III</a>	<p><b>Directors</b></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Section 1. Number of Directors</li> <li>Section 2. Term of Office</li> <li>Section 3. Vacancies</li> <li>Section 4. Removal of Directors</li> <li>Section 5. Place of Meeting</li> <li>Section 6. Regular Meetings</li> <li>Section 7. Call of Special Meeting</li> <li>Section 8. Quorum</li> </ul>

	<p><b>Section 9. Majority Action</b></p> <p><b>Section 10. Action by concent of Board without Meeting</b></p> <p><b>Section 11. Adjournment</b></p> <p><b>Section 12. Conduct of Meeting</b></p> <p><b>Section 13. Powers and Duties</b></p> <p><b>Section 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers</b></p>
<a href="#">Article IV</a>	<p><b>Officers</b></p> <p><b>Section 1. Numbers and Titles</b></p> <p><b>Section 2. Elections</b></p> <p><b>Section 3. Subordinate Officers</b></p> <p><b>Section 4. Removal and Resignation</b></p> <p><b>Section 5. Vacancies</b></p> <p><b>Section 6. Chairman of the Board</b></p> <p><b>Section 7. President</b></p> <p><b>Section 8. Vice-President</b></p> <p><b>Section 9. Secretary</b></p> <p><b>Section 10. Treasurer</b></p> <p><b>Section 11. Bond</b></p>
<a href="#">Article V</a>	<p><b>Execution of Instrument and Deposit of Funds</b></p> <p><b>Section 1. Authority for Execution of Contract and Instruments</b></p> <p><b>Section 2. Bank Accounts and Deposits</b></p>
<a href="#">Article VI</a>	<p><b>Initiative</b></p> <p><b>Section 1. Petition</b></p> <p><b>Section 2. Notice</b></p> <p><b>Section 3. Arguments</b></p> <p><b>Section 4. Adoption</b></p>
<a href="#">Article VII</a>	<p><b>Amendment of By-Laws</b></p> <p><b>Section 1. Inspection of By-Laws</b></p> <p><b>Section 2. Adoptions, Amendments, and Repeals of By-Laws</b></p>
<a href="#">Resolution</a>	<p><b>Past Board Resolutions</b></p>

**EXHIBIT "A"**  
**BY-LAWS of LA CRESTA PROPERTY OWNERS**  
**ASSOCIATION**  
**PREAMBLE**

The La Cresta Property Owners Association is an unincorporated non-profit association formed for the maintenance, repair and upkeep of the private roads, drainage improvements, slope easements, water acquisition areas, and fire retreat areas within the boundaries of the La Cresta Development, County of Riverside, California.

As used in these By-Laws "Development" refers to the real property subject to the jurisdiction of this association; "Lot Owner" refers to an owner of a lot in said development.

goto [Index](#)

**ARTICLE I**

**Office**

The principal office for the transaction of the business of the La Cresta Property Owners Association shall be located at the La Cresta Development, Riverside County, California, or wherever designated by the Board of Directors.

goto [Index](#)

**ARTICLE II**

**Meetings of Lot Owners**

**Section 1. Place of Meeting**

Meetings of lot owners shall be held at any place designated by the Board of Directors pursuant to authority hereinafter granted to the Board, or by written consent of all persons entitled to vote thereat. In the absence of any such designation, lot owner meetings shall be held at the principal office of the association.

**Section 2. Annual Meeting**

The annual meeting of lot owners shall be held on the last Sunday of September of each year, at 1:00 P.M., provided, however that should that day fall upon a legal holiday, then at the same time on the next day thereafter which is not a legal holiday. At such meetings Directors shall be elected, reports of the affairs of the association shall be considered, a budget for the succeeding year shall be adopted, and any other business may be transacted which is within the powers of the lot owners.

**Section 3. (a) Notice of Meeting**

Notice of all meetings of lot owners shall be given in writing to lot owners entitled to vote by the secretary or other person charged with that duty, or in case of his neglect or refusal, or if there is no person charged with the duty of giving notice, by any Director or lot owner.

**(b) Method of Notice**

A notice may be given by the association to any lot owner either personally or by mail or other means of written communication, charged pre-paid, addressed to the lot owner at his address appearing on the books of the association or given by him to the association for the purpose of notice. If a lot owner gives no address, then notice is duly given him if sent by mail or other means of written communication addressed to the place where the principal office of the association is situated, or if published at least once in some newspaper of general circulation in the Judicial District in which the principal office is located.

**(c) Time of Notice**

Notice of any meeting of lots owners shall be sent to each lot owner entitled thereto not less than seven (7) days before the meeting and not more than sixty (60) days before the meeting.

**(d) Contents of Notice**

Notice of any meeting of lot owners shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting and, in the case of special meetings, the general nature of the business to be transacted.

**(e) Notice of Adjourned Meeting**

When a lot owner's meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. When a meeting is adjourned for less than 30 days it is not necessary to give any notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting or the to be transacted thereat other than by announcement at the meeting at which the adjournment is taken.

**(f) Waiver of Notice**

Notice of any meeting may be waived by the written consent of any lot owner delivered to the secretary of the association either before or after the meeting.

#### **Section 4. (a) Special Meetings**

Upon request, in writing, vice-president or secretary, sent by registered mail, or delivered to such officer in person, by any person entitled to call a meeting of lot owners, such officer shall forthwith cause notice to be given to the lot owners entitled to vote that a meeting will be held at a time picked by the officer not less than ten ( 10 ) nor more than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the request. If the notice is not given within seven (7) days within date of delivery or the date of mailing of the request, the person calling the meeting may pick the time of meeting and give the notice in the manner provided in these By-Laws. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as limiting the time or date when a meeting of lot owners called by action of the Board of Directors may be held.

#### **(b) Persons entitled to Call Special Meetings**

Special meetings of the lot owners for any purpose whatsoever may be called at any time by any of the following: (1) the president; (2) the Board of Directors; (3) lot owners holding not less than 1/5 of the voting power of the association.

#### **Section 5. Quorum**

The presence in person or by proxy of the lot owners entitled to vote a majority of the lots in said tract shall constitute a quorum.

#### **Section 6. Adjournment**

In the absence of a quorum, any lot owner's meeting may be adjourned by the vote of the majority of lot owners, either present in person or by proxy, for a period of not less than 4 8 hours nor more than thirty ( 3 0 ) days from the time the original meeting was called, but no other business shall be transacted and at such subsequent meeting the quorum shall consist of the presence in person or by proxy of the lot owners entitled to vote 25% of the number of lots in said tract.

#### **Section 7. Voting**

Each lot owner shall be entitled to cast one vote for each lot owned by him in said tract except as provided in Section 8 below. A majority of the voting power present in person or by proxy shall prevail at all meetings.

#### **Section 8. Cumulative Voting**

Every lot owner entitled to vote at any election for Directors may cumulate his votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of Directors to be elected, multiplied by the number of votes to which he is entitled, or distribute his votes on the same principle among any candidates as he thinks fit. The candidates as receiving the highest number of votes up to the number of Directors to be elected are elected.

#### **Section 9. Voting by Voice and Ballot**

Election of Directors need not be by ballot unless a lot owner demands election by ballot at the election and before the voting begins.

#### **Section 10. (a) Proxies**

Every person entitled to vote or execute consents shall have the right to do so either in person or by one or more agents authorized by written proxy executed by such persons or his duly authorized agent and filed with the secretary of the association.

#### **(b) Regulating Proxies**

The Board of Directors may in advance of any annual or special meeting of the lot owners prescribe regulations concerning the manner of execution and filing of proxies and the validation of the same which are intended to be voted at any such meeting.

#### **Section 11. Consent of Absentees**

The transactions of any meeting of lot owners, however called and noticed, are as valid as though had at a meeting duly held upon regular call and notice if a quorum is present, either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the persons entitled to vote not present in person or by proxy, signs a written waiver of notice or a consent of the holding of the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers consents or approvals shall be filed with the association records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

#### **Section 12. Conduct of Meetings**

At every meeting of the lot owners the president, or in his absence the vice-president, or in the absence of a vice president, a chairman chosen by a majority in interest of the lot owners of the association present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, shall act as chairman. The secretary of the association, or in his absence an assistant secretary, shall act as secretary of all meetings of the lot owners. In the absence at such meeting of the secretary or assistant secretary the chairman may appoint another person to act as secretary of the meeting.

goto [Index](#)

## **ARTICLE III**

### **Directors**

#### **Section 1. Number of Directors**

The number of Directors of this association shall be five . The number of Directors may be changed by amendment to these By-Laws duly adopted by the lot owners, but the votes or written consents of lot owners holding more than 80% o f t h e voting power shall be necessary to reduce the authorized number of Directors below five.

#### **Section 2. Term of Office**

The Directors shall be elected to serve a term of 2 years. The Directors will be elected at the annual lot owners meeting. Three (3) Directors shall be elected in the odd numbered years and two (2) shall be elected in the even numbered years.

#### **Section 3. (a) Vacancies**

Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall exist in case of the happening of any of the following events: (1) the death, resignation or removal of any Director; ( 2) the authorized number of Directors is increased or (3) at any annual, regular of special meeting of lot owners at which any Director is elected, the lot owners fail to elect the full authorized number of Directors to be voted for at that meeting.

#### **(b) Declaration of Vacancy**

The Board of Directors may declare vacant the office of a Director in either of the following cases 1) if he is declared of unsound mind by an order of court or finally convicted of a felony or (2) if with in 60 days after notice of his election he does not accept the office either in writing or attending a meeting of the Board of Directors.

#### **(c) Filling of Vacancies**

Vacancies may be filled by a majority of the remaining Directors though less than a quorum or by a sole remaining Director. Each Director so elected shall hold office until the completion of the preceding Directors unexpired term.

#### **(d) Filling Vacancies by Lot Owners**

The lot owners may elect a Director at any time to fill any vacancy not filled by the Directors. A reduction of the authorized number of Directors shall not remove any Director prior to the expiration of his term of office.

#### **Section 4. Removal of Directors**

The entire Board of Directors or any individual Director , may be removed from office by a vote of lot owners holding a majority of the voting power entitled to vote at an election of Directors. However, unless the entire Board is removed, an individual Director shall not be removed if the number of votes against the resolution for his removal exceeds the quotient arrived at when the total number of outstanding lot owners entitled to vote is divided by one (1) plus the authorized number of directors. If any or all Directors are so removed, new Directors may be elected at the same meeting.

#### **Section 5. Place of Meetings**

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at any place which has been designated from time to time by the resolution of the board of by written consent of a members of the Board. In the absence of such designation regular meetings shall be held at the principal office of the association. Special meetings of the Board may be held either at a place so designated or at the principal office Any regular or special meeting is valid wherever held if held on written consent of all members of the Board given either before or after the meeting and filed with the secretary of the association.

#### **Section 6. (a) Regular Meetings**

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such time during the year, but not less frequently than quarterly, as the Board of Directors shall direct. Regular annual meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at the same time and place as and immediately following the annual meeting of the lot owners.

#### **(b) Call of Regular Meetings**

All regular meetings of the Board of Directors of this association shall be called by the president or if he is absent or is unable or refuses to act, by any vice-president or by any two directors. Lot owners may attend, but may not vote at, regular meetings.

#### **(c) Notice of Regular Meeting**

Written notice of the time and place of the regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be delivered personally to each director or sent to each director by mail or by other form of written communication at least seven (7) days before the meeting and not more than sixty (60) days before the meeting. If the address of a director is not shown on the records of the association and is not readily ascertainable, notice shall be addressed to him at the place at which the meeting of the directors are regularly held. Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent directors if the time and place are fixed at the time of meeting so adjourned.

#### **(d) Validation of Meet Called or Noticed**

The transaction of any meeting of the Board of Directors however called and noticed or wherever held are as valid as though had at a meeting duly held upon regular call and notice if a quorum is present and if either before or after the meeting each of the directors not present signs a waiver of notice and

consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents or approvals thereof shall be filed with the association records or made apart of the minutes of the meeting.

**Section 7. (a) Call of Special Meeting**

Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the president or if he is absent or is unable or refused to act by any vice-president or by any two directors. Lot owners may attend, but may not vote at, special meetings.

**(b) Notice of Special Meeting**

Written notice of the time and place of special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be delivered personally to the directors or sent to each director by mail or other form of written communication at least seven (7) days before the meeting and not more than sixty (60) days before the meeting. If the address of the director is not shown on the records and is not readily ascertainable, notice shall be addressed to him at the place in which the meeting of the directors are regularly held. Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent directors if the time and place were fixed at the meeting so adjourned.

**(c) Validation of Special Meeting**

The transactions of any special meeting of the Board of Directors however called and noticed or wherever held are as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if a quorum is present and, if either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents or approvals thereof shall be filed with the association records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

**Section 8. Quorum**

A majority of the authorized number of Directors constitutes a quorum of the Board for the transaction of business.

**Section 9. Majority Action**

Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at any meeting duly held at which a quorum is present is the act of the Board of Directors.

**Section 10. Action by Consent of Board without Meeting**

Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as the unanimous vote of such Directors.

**Section 11. Adjournment**

In the absence of a quorum a majority of the Directors present may adjourn from time to time until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board. Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent directors if the time and place are fixed at the meeting adjourned.

**Section 12. Conduct of Meetings**

At every meeting of the Board of Directors the chairman of the Board, if there shall be such an officer, and if not, the president, or in his absence the vice-president, or in the absence of such vice-president, a chairman chosen by a majority of the Directors present shall preside. The secretary of the association shall act as secretary of the Board of Directors. In case the secretary shall be absent from any meeting the chairman may appoint any person to act as secretary of the meeting.

**Section 13. Powers and Duties**

Subject to the limitations of the laws of the State of California and subject to the duties of Directors as prescribed by the By-Laws, all association powers shall be exercised by, or under authority of, and the business and affairs of the association shall be controlled by the Board of Directors. Without prejudice to such general powers, but subject to the same limitations, it is hereby expressly declared that the Directors shall have the following powers and duties.

- a. To enforce each and every provision of the Declaration of Restrictions.
- b. To provide and pay for the maintenance, repair and upkeep of the private roads, fire protection areas, and water acquisition area within said development and the appurtenant drainage improvements and slop easements contained therein, including but not limited to the removal of ashes, garbage and refuse such maintenance, repair and upkeep shall be done in a continual and workmanlike manner.
- c. To provide and pay for the opening, widening, extending, straightening, and closing, in whole or in part, of any street in said development, subject to the consent of the governing body of the County of Riverside, when the same shall be deemed reasonably necessary.
- d. To purchase materials, supplies and the like for the maintenance of the streets, fire protection areas, easements and water acquisition area when the same shall be reasonably necessary.

- e. To pay the taxes and special tax assessments which would be a lien upon the private roads or fire areas and to discharge any lien or encumbrances levied upon such roads of fire protection areas.
- f. To enter personally, or by agent upon any lot when necessary in connection with the performance of any maintenance or repair responsibility provided for herein.
- g. To provide, promulgate, and enforce all regulations reasonably necessary to govern and police the use of said roads, easements and fire protection areas, including, but not limited to, the establishment of parking regulations and restrictions on such private roads.
- h. To provide and pay for, if deemed desirable, the equipping and maintaining of a security force or other police protection to protect and safeguard property and to enforce the rules and regulations with respect to the private roads, easements and fire protection areas of said tract .
- i. To provide and pay for labor and professional services to carry out the purposes of the association, including the contracting and paying of premiums for fire, casualty, liability and other insurance and indemnity and other Bonds when required.
- j. To provide and perform any work of construction and operation under its own superintendence or to contract for the performance of such work by others.
- k. To contract with the County or State for any and all purposes necessary or convenient to the exercise of any of the powers, duties or functions of the association.
- l. To perform all acts necessary to carry out fully the purpose of the association and to delegate any of its powers.

#### **Section 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers**

The Board of Directors may authorize the association to pay expenses incurred by or to satisfy a judgment or fine rendered or levied against any present or former Director, officer or employee of the association in an action brought by a third party against such person, whether or not the association is joined as a party defendant, to impose a liability or penalty on such person for an act alleged to have been committed by such person while a Director, officer or employee or by the association or by both, provided the Director, officer or employee or by the association or by both, provided the Board of Directors determine in good faith within what he reasonably believed to be his scope of appointment or authority and for a purpose for which he reasonably believed to be in the best interest of the association and its members.

goto [Index](#)

## **ARTICLE IV**

### **Officers**

#### **Section 1. Numbers and Titles**

The officers of the association shall be a president, a vice-president, a secretary and a treasurer. The association may also have at the discretion of the Board of Directors a chairman of the Board, one or more additional vice-presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, one or more assistant treasurers and such other officers as may be appointed by the Board of Directors. One person may hold two or more offices except those of president and secretary. In its discretion the Board of Directors may leave unfilled for any period it may fix any office except the office of president and secretary.

#### **Section 2. Election**

The officers of the association except such officers as in accordance with the provision hereafter provided shall be chosen annually by the Board of Directors and each shall hold his office until he shall resign or shall be removed or otherwise is qualified to serve or his successor shall be elected and qualified.

#### **Section 3. Subordinate Officers**

The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers or agents as the business of the association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as are provided in the By-Laws or as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. The Board of Directors may delegate to any officer or committee the power to appoint any such subordinate officers, committees or agents to assist them in their duties.

#### **Section 4. Removal and Resignation**

Any officer may be removed either with or without cause by a majority of the Directors at the time in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board or, except in case of an officer chosen by the Board of Directors, by any committee or officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by the Board of Directors. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors or to the president or to the secretary of the association. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein and unless otherwise specified the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

#### **Section 5. Vacancies**

If the office of the president, vice-president, secretary, treasurer, or assistant treasurer becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, removal or otherwise, the Board of Directors shall elect a successor who shall hold office for the unexpired term and until his successor is elected.

#### **Section 6. Chairman of the Board**

The chairman of the board, if there shall be such an officer, shall if present, preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by the Board of Directors or prescribed by the By-Laws.

#### **Section 7. President**

Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by the Board of Directors to the chairman of the board, if there be such an officer, the president shall be the chief executive officer of the association and shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision and control of the business and affairs of the association and shall have the general powers and duties of the management usually vested in the office of president of an association and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or by By-Laws.

#### **Section 8. Vice-President**

In the absence or disability of the president, the vice-presidents, in order of their rank, fixed by the Board of Directors, or if not ranked the vice-president designated by the Board of Directors, shall perform all of the duties of president and when so acting shall have all of the powers of and will be subject to all of the restrictions upon the president. The vice-president shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the Board of Directors or by the By-Laws.

#### **Section 9. Secretary**

The secretary shall certify and keep at the principal office of the association the original or a copy of the By-Laws as amended, and keep at the principal office of the association or such other place as the Board of Directors may order a book of minutes of all meetings of its Directors, lot owners, executive committee and other committees with the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and if special how authorized, the notice thereof given, the names of those present and the proceedings thereof; shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by law. In the case of the absence or disability of the secretary or his refusal or neglect to act, notice may be given and served by an assistant secretary or by the president or vice-president or by the Board of Directors. The secretary shall be Custodian of the Records and see that the books, reports, statements, certificates and all other documents and records are properly kept and filed; shall exhibit at all reasonable times to any Director or lot owner upon application, the By-Laws and minutes of proceedings of the association and shall perform all duties incident to the office of secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

#### **Section 10. Treasurer**

The treasurer shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the association and shall deposit all such funds in the name of the association in such bank or other depository as shall be selected by the Board of Directors; shall receive and give receipt of monies payable to the association from any source whatever; shall disburse or cause to be disbursed the funds of the association as may be directed by the Board of

Directors taking proper vouchers for such disbursements; shall keep and maintain adequate accounts of the association's property and business transactions including account of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, and surplus; shall exhibit at all reasonable times the books of accounts and records to any lot owner or Director upon application; shall render annually, an account of all transactions and of the financial condition of the association and shall perform all duties incident to the office of treasurer and all other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by the Board of Directors.

#### Section 11. Bond

Each officer of the association shall give to association a bond in a sum, with a surety company satisfactory to the Board of Directors for the faithful performance of the duties of his office and for the restoration to the association in case of his death resignation, retirement or removal from office all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his possession or under his control or belonging to the association.

goto [Index](#)

## ARTICLE V

### Execution of Instruments and Deposit of Funds

#### Section 1. Authority for Execution of Contracts and Instruments

The Board of Directors except as otherwise provided in the By-Laws, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents to enter into any contract, or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the association and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances and unless so authorized no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the association by a contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit or to render it liable monetarily for any purpose and in any amount.

#### Section 2. (a) Bank Accounts and Deposits

All funds of the association shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the association with such banks or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select or as may be selected by an officer or officers, agent or agents of the association to whom such power may be delegated from time to time by the Board of Directors.

#### (b) Endorsements without Counter Signature

Endorsements for deposit to the credit of the association in any of its duly authorized depositories may be made without counter signature by any officer or agent of the association to whom the Board of Directors, by resolution, shall have delegated such power or by hand stamp impression by the name of the association.

#### (c) Signatures

All checks, drafts or other order for payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the association shall be signed or endorsed by the president and treasurer or such other person or persons and in such manner as shall be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

goto [Index](#)

## ARTICLE VI

### Initiative

#### Section 1. Petition

Any proposed resolution may be submitted to the Board of Directors by an Initiative Petition filed with the secretary of the association signed by not less than 20% of the lot owners entitled to vote. Said petition shall include:

(a) A request that a special meeting be called;

(b) A statement of the resolution proposed and the grounds on which the initiative is sought.

#### Section 2. Notice

Within ten ( 10 ) days after receipt of the Initiative Petition, the secretary of the association shall deliver personally or by mail a copy thereof to each lot owner, and shall concurrently therewith cause notice to be given to the lot owners entitled to vote that a special meeting will be held at a time fixed by the secretary, not less than (10) nor more than sixty (60) days after the mailing of the notice.

#### Section 3. Arguments

The persons filing an Initiative Petition pursuant to this Article, may file with the petition, which shall be a part thereof, a written argument in favor of the proposed resolution. The Board of Directors may submit and attach an argument against the resolution. Neither argument shall exceed 300 words in length.

**Section 4. Adoption**

If the proposed resolution is adopted by the voters at such special meeting such resolution shall immediately become valid and binding resolution of the association.

goto [Index](#)

## **ARTICLE VII**

### **Amendment of By-Laws**

**Section 1. Inspection of By-Laws**

The association shall keep in its principal office for the transaction of its business the original or a copy of the By-Laws as amended to date which shall be open to the lot owners at all reasonable times for inspection.

**Section 2. Adoptions. Amendments and R Deals of By-Laws**

By-Laws may be adopted, amended or repealed by the vote or written consent of lot owners entitled to exercise not less than 3/4 of the voting power of the association except where a greater number is required by law and provided that such By-Laws as adopted or amended are not in conflict with any law.

goto [Index](#)

These resolutions should be re-ratified by each subsequent board.

## **BOARD RESOLUTION**

### **LA CRESTA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION**

**IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:**

**1986.01**

Effective immediately, any property owner desiring to communicate via the mailing list of the Association shall submit a prepared text of the letter to the Association's Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled board meeting thirty (30) days prior to the desired mailing date.

With in seven ( 7 ) days of receiving the prepared text the Board of Directors shall pass upon the submitted letter's absence of solicitation language for business, political or charitable purposes . Under no circumstances shall the Board of Directors edit or censor the content of any prepared text submitted.

Upon the Board of Directors finding that the submitted text is void of any prohibited economic solicitation (as described above), the submitting property owner shall be advised to deliver stuffed, sealed and stamped envelopes to the Association's office. The Association secretary will then address and mail out the letter to a11 known property owners within the Association.

In the event that the standard thirty (30) day notice would render the proposed mailing moot or drastically ineffective, the petitioning property owner may circumvent the foregoing procedure by securing the written approval of three (3) Board of Directors and delivering same along with stuffed, sealed and stamped envelopes to the Association's office.

**1989.01**

In order to prevent individual Directors form speaking unilaterally or representing their view as that of the entire Board of Directors:

All written correspondence on La Cresta Property Owners letter head from the Board of Directors, it's Committees, or Management assignees must be signed and approved by minimally 3 directors prior to mailing.

**1989.02**

In order to control the expenditure of Association funds in regard to legal action/opinion required by the La Cresta Property Owners Association:

A single designated Director shall be elected to serve as liaison to the Association Attorney, and no attorneys fees shall be incurred by the Association without the said liaison obtaining prior approval by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at a regularly or special scheduled meeting.

**1989.03**

**All expenditures of La Cresta Property Owners Associations funds must be approved in regular or special scheduled meeting by a majority vote of the Board of Directors before expenditure.  
WebPage by Fred Ward (December 2000)**